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The home built in 1877^78 by pioneer banker and newspaper publisher Asahel 
Bush was occupied hy the Bush family until 1953, when it was acquired by the 
City of Salem.

Local contractor Wilbur F. Boothby, builder of the old Second Empire 
Baroque Marion County Courthouse, is credited with the design of Bush's house. 
His workmen labored through autumn and winter storms to complete the building, 
purportedly copying a fashionable wood frame house in Bethlehem, Pennslyvania, 
where Asahel l s deceased wife Eugenia, had attended the Moravian Seminary. 
Plans may also have been based upon one or more of the builder's handbooks of 
the day. When Asahel and his four children, Estelle, Asahel Nesmith, Sally 
and Eugenia moved into the house it was on the south edge of Salem in a grove 
of oak trees at the crest of a hill over looking broad avenues leading toward 
the Capitol.

Italianate in style, the house has drop siding, bracketed gable roofs, 
elongated windows with segmental arch heads, a high basement, a polygonal bay, 
and a veranda from which a long flight of stairs leads to the lawn. The 
uniqueness of the Bush House today lies chiefly in its rich, unaltered interior,rn 
which includes original embossed French wall papers, brass fittings, and elaborate 
woodwork.

The family lived out their lives in the 12-room mansion. Sally died in 
1946. Asahel Nesmith returned to spend his last days in the dwelling, dying 
in 1952 at the age of 95.

The Salem Art Association purchased many of the original furnishings fron 
the family with the view in mind of administering a historic house museum. 
Meanwhile, the City had been deeded the property long known as "Bush's Pasture 
for park purposes. A section of the 100-acre park to the east of the house 
was sold in turn to Willamette University of an athletic stadium and playing 
field.

The Bush home, sturdy and solid despite its 75 years, was formally openec 
as an historical museum and art gallery on October 20, 1953. Downstairs are 
a sitting room, library, master bedroom, parlor, dining room and kitchen. A 
broad staircase of walnut and mahogany leads from the central entrance hall to 
bedrooms, sitting rooms and servants' quarters upstairs. Ten of the twelve 
rooms have marble fireplaces. Over two of them are large French gilt mirrors 
for which Asahel purportedly paid a total of $235 in New York the Christmas 
of 1880. Some of the furniture is the work of a cabinet maker friend of Mr. 
Bush. Several of the stands were carved by the New England Craftsman from 
oak and cherry trees that fell on the grounds. Each bedroom has not only its 
own fireplace but its own lavatory, with marble basins and up-to-date fixtures 
The old kitchen range with a charcoal broiler attachment was made at the State 
Penitentiary, of which Asahel was Superintendent during the 1880s.

Being situated on the outskirts of town in 1878, Mr. Bush saw to it that 
his residence was self-sufficient. Not only did a deep enclosed well provide 
water for all the rooms, but Asahel installed his own gas plant. Tirrell's 
"underwriters approved gas machine for illumination" was shipped to him via 
Cape Horn from New York in 1878 at a cost of $277.80. Four pages of instruct­ 
ions on assembling preceeded it by mail, in longhand.

Ever since its opening in 1953, through an agreement with the City of 
Salem, the house has been administered by the Salem Art Association, which

O

also administers an art center on the grounds. After it was partially destro; ed
bv fire in 1963, the Art Association remodeled the barn behind Bush*for galle::y y —————————————————————————————————Ho-fise————r
and classroom use.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Any -history of Oregon, touching upon its early political, commercial or 
civic development must include reference to Asahel Busk. As a newspaperman, 
banker, and public official, he was recognized as one of Oregon's most in- 
fluencial men for nearly sixty years. The only remaining memorial to him is 
his house built in 1878 in the "Italian Villa" style on a sizeable estate 
which includes open ground for pasturing cows.

Asahel Bush, born in Westfield, Massachusetts, June 4, 1824, attended 
school until he was fifteen, when his father died. He then went to Saratoga 
Springs, New York, and spent three years learning the printing trade. He 
next went'to Albany, where for a few months he was connected with state 
printing, and from there went to Cleveland, Ohio, where he remained about a 
year. He then returned to Westfield, where he studied law and was admitted 
to the bar of Massachusetts in 1850. From January 24, 1849, until July 3, 
1850, he served as editor of the Westfield Standard, a position he resigned 
in July of that year, when he decided to locate in Oregon. He traveled to 
Panama, thenac^°ss the isthmus, and up the coast to San Francisco where he 
proceeded by boat to Astoria, Oregon, and continued up the Columbia and 
Willamette rivers to Portland, then a town of only a few hundred inhabitants 
After a brief period he located in Oregon City and on March 28, 1851, he 
began the publication of the first distinctively Democratic paper in the 
state, the Oregon Statesman, for which he had the printing press shipped 
from the East around Cape Horn. When the Territorial capital was moved in 
1853, he transferred the office and plant to Salem. There he continued 
publishing until 1863 when he sold the newspaper.

During his newpaper publishing period Bush became one of the most in­ 
fluential men in the public affairs of the state. The Oregon Statesman and 
its friends were credited with practically controlling the government at 
Salem. Bush exerted a stroig influence in party affairs statewide. On the 
division of the Democratic Party in 1860, Bush supported the Union cause. At 
the Bemociratic State Convention in 1888 he was chosen chairman of the State 
Central Committee, in which position he antagonized some newspaper men by 
refusing to subsidize their papers.

In the early 1860s Mr. Bush was for four years a silent partner in the 
nercantile firm of Lucien Health and Company of Salem, and in 1868 he engagec 
in banking in association with William S. Ladd, under the firm name of Ladd 
and Bush, and erected in Salem an imposing brick masonry bank building with 
zast iron front. In December, 1882, Mr. Bush acquired the sole ownership of 
the bank, which continued to operate under the old name. In 1910, when it

s incorporated as a state bank with capital of five hundred thousand 
dollars, it was the largest bank in Oregon outside of Portland. (continued)
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Bush (Asahel) House

2. Location

The Asahel Bush House is located in SE %, Sec. 27, 
of the Willamette Meridian, in Marion County, Oregon.

8. Significance

Bush continued to head his bank as president until his death on December 
13, 1913, in his ninetieth year.

Bush performed a less widely known but valuable service for eight 
years as Oregon's Territorial Printer. He was the only man to ever hold 
that office. In 1859 he became the first State Printer, a position he heLd 
for twelve years. He served for a number of years as a Regent of the Univer­ 
sity of Oregon, and was one of the first Trustees of Willamette Universit

In October, 1854, in Salem, Asahel Bush had married Eugenia Zeiber, 
whose father, John S. Zeiber, was at the time Surveyor General of Oregon. 
Eugenia died in Salem on September 11, 1863, leaving four children. The 
children kept their parents' house and grounds intact throughout their 
lives as a living memorial.
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